I‘AXIS FINANCE

Dear Members,

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT - 2015-2016

Your Directors are pleased to present the 21 Annual Report on the business, operations and state of affairs of the
Company together with the audited financial statement of the Company Accounts for the financial year ended

March 31, 2016.

1. Financial Results of the Company
The summarized financial performance of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 is presented

below:
{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Current Previous
Financial Year Financial Year
31.03.16 31.03.15
Revenue from Operations (Net) and other income 372,98,96,108 224,26,10,984
{Profit/(Loss} before Tax 169,89,89,083 117,39,17,332
Provision for Taxation 59,13,38,622 39,22,72,287
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 110,76,50,460 78,16,45,045
Balance hrought forward from previous year 121,46,90,619 58,94,45,574
Profit available for appropriation 232,23,41,079 137,10,90,619
Less: Appropriations
- Interim Equity Dividend 62,60,25,000 -
- Proposed Final Equity Dividend - _ -
- Tax on Equity Dividends 12,74,43,960 -
- Previous Year Tax on Equity Dividends - -
-  General Reserve ‘ - -
- Transfer to Statutory Reserve 22,16,00,000 15,64,00,000
Surplus carried to the Balance Sheet 134,72,72,119 121,46,90,619

2. Operations Review

During the year, the Company has grown its outstanding Loans & Advances from Rs. 2,095.32 Cr to Rs.
3,103.62 Cr, a growth of 48.12%. The Net worth of the Company increased from Rs. 590.16 Cr as at March 31,
2015 to Rs. 725.49 Cr as at March 31, 2016. Net Interest income increased by 59.10% from Rs. 90.52 Cr during
the previous financial year ending March 31, 2015 to Rs. 144.02 Cr during the financial year ending March 31,
2016. The Profit before Tax, before exceptional items, increased from Rs. 117.39 Cr during the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2015 to Rs. 169.89 Cr during the current financial year ending March 31, 2016.
Net profit increased by 41.72% from Rs. 78.16 Cr to Rs. 110.77 Cr during the year.

A detailed discussion of operations for the year ended March 31, 2016 is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report, which is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

3. Dividend
During the financial year 2015-16, your Directors had declared and paid interim dividend of Rs.1.70 per share
(on the face value of Rs. 10 each) aggregating to Rs. 62.60 Cr {excluding dividend distribution tax). Your
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directors are not recommending any additional dividend and accordingly the said interim dividend may be
treated and considered as the final dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2016.

Transfer to Statutory Reserves
An amount of Rs, 22.16 Cr (being 20% of the net profits} has been transferred to Statutory Reserve as required
under the provisions of Section 45 IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

Disclosures about capital infusion during the year and reservas transferred to the P & L account

During the year 5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each for cash at a premium of Rs.10Q per equity share were
issued and aliotted on a Rights basis to Axis Bank Limited {Holding Company)}. The total issued and paid-up
capital as on March 31, 2016 stood at Rs. 368.25 Cr. There has been no change in the issued and paid up
capital after March 31, 2016 till the date of this report. Further, no reserves were transferred to the P&L
Account during the year.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of the Report

As part of the group restructuring process and also in order to improve operating efficiencies, an approval of
the Board of Directors has been obtained in- principle approval to amalgamate Axis Private Equity Limited (a
fellow subsidiary company) with the Company, pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation to be drawn up
between the two companies and its shareholders under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
and / or the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Rules & Regulations in force

Except as stated above, no materfal changes have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements refate and the date of the report.

Finance

The company raises funds using the most optimal mix, both, from banks & through the capital market route so
as to minimise the cost of funds. To this end, it raises funds from banks by way of term loans and also has
sanctioned cash credit lines in place, further it also raises funds through issuance of commercial papers and
non-convertible debentures.

During the year, the Company issued Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to
Rs.347.00 Cr on private placement basis. Total amount as on March 31, 2016 raised through Commercial
Paper and Bank Finance stood at Rs. 1103.27 Cr and Rs. 850.37 Cr. respectively.

Credit Rating
The Company enjoys highest credit rating from the Rating Agency. The credit rating reflect the Company's

financial discipline and prudence.

The Company has been assigned the following credit rating :

Name of Rating Agency Type Ratings | Amount (Rs. in Tenure Validity
Crores)
India Ratings and | Long Term IND AAA | 1,200 - Yearly Surveillance
Research Private Limited | Short Term IND Al+ 5,500 12 months | February 28, 2017

Capital Adequacy
The Company’s capital adequacy ratio was 21.81% as on March 31, 2016 which is significantly above the
threshold limit of 15% as prescribed by the RBI.
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0. Deposits

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposit pursuant to Section 73 and Section 76 of the
Companties Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

Change in shareholding pattern, materiai changes in the financial position of the company and
commitments from the previous financial year till the current year '

The Company confinues to remain the wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank lezted there is therefore no
change in the shareholding pattern of the Company during the year under review.

information about Subsidiary/ JV/ Associate Company
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend etc. to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Since there was no amount lying w.r.t unpaid/unclaimed Dividend , the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 does not apply. Further, there was no amount due to be transferred to |EPF in respect to
secured redeemable non-convertible debentures and interest thereon by the Company.

Extracts of the Annuai Return of the Company

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith for your kind
perusal and information. (Annexure f)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider among other businesses, quarterly performance of the
Company and financial results. Te enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively and take
informed decisions, necessary information is made available to the Board including circulation of agenda and
notes thereof as well as presentations on financials and other critical areas of operations of the company. The
Board is also kept informed of major events/items and approvals are being taken wherever necessary. The
Managing Director & CEQ, at the Board Meetings keeps the Board apprised of the overall performance of the
Company at such meetings.

During the financial year 2015-16, the Company held 6 (six) meetings of the Board of Directors as per Section
173 of Companies Act, 2013. These were held on April 15, 2015, May 22, 2015, August 4, 2015, October 28,
2015, January 21, 2016 & March 21, 2016. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations
were adhered to while considering the time gap between any two meetings.

Attendance of the directors during FY2016is as under:

Nameofthe | Category of Divector Attendance at the last No. of Board meetings held, and attended
Director. S " | AGM held on June 18, _
: 2015 1 2 3 4 5 6

Mr. Srinivasan Chairman YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
Varadarajan (Non- Executive

Director)
Mr. Bipin Kumar Managing Director YES YES YES YES YES ¥YES YES
Saraf (Executive Director)
Mr. Bapi Munshi Director YES YES YES YES NO YES YES

(Non- Executive

Director)

Mr. V.R Kaundinya Director YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
(independent Director)

Mrs.

Dubhashi {Independent Director)

Madhu Director YES YES NO YES YES YES YES
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Details about directors and KMPs who were appointed/resigned during the financial year

i) Details of Directors- There was no change in Directorships during the financial year 2015-16. However, on
account of his pre-occupation and other commitments, Mr. Bapi Munshi {DIN: 02470242), Director of the
Company has tendered his resignation from the Board of the Company w.e.f. April 12, 2016. The Board of
Directors would like to place on record the guidance and support extended by Mr. Munshi during his tenure as
the director of the Company and wish him all the best for all his future endeavours.

Further w.e.f. April 12, 2016, Mr. Cyril Anand Madireddi (DIN: 07489389), was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company. Mr. Cyril Anand is not related to any of the directors of the Company. He holds office
upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a Notice from a
member along with requisite deposit proposing candidature of Mr. Cyril Anand as Directer of the Company.
Accordingly, the approval of members for appointment of Mr. Cyril Anand as a Director liable to retire by
rotation is being sought at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

if) Details of KMP

Sr. No. Name Designation | Appt/Resign W.ef S " Remarks :
1 Mr. Bipin Kumar | Managing Re-Appointed | 16.04.2016 | Re-appointed for a period of 3 years
Saraf Director w.e.f 16.04.2016 at Board Meeting held
on 21.01.2016

Directors retiring by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable Company Rules,
2014, Mr Srinivasan Varadarajan, retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Board Evaluation

Evaluation of performance of all Directors is undertaken annually. The Company has implemented a system of
evaluating performance of the Board of Directors and of its Committees and individual Directors on the basis
of a structured gquestionnaire which comprises evaluation criteria taking into consideration various
performance related aspects.

The Board of Directors has expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

A statement on declaration given by independent directors

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms that alt the Independent directors duly appointed by
the Company have given the declaration and they meet the criteria of independence as provided under
section 145(6}) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3}{(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

{a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

{b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

{c} The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
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The directors, have laid down internal financial conirols to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were cperating effectively and

{f} The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Auditors

I} Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors
The members of the Company at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company heid on July 28, 2014,
had appointed S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (FRN 301003E), as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting to be held
in year 2018, subject to ratification of their appointment at every Annual General Meeting. A resolution
for the ratification of the appointment of 5.R. Batfiboi & Co. LLP as Statutory Auditors is being placed for
the approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

) Appointment of internal Auditors
The Company has appointed M/s. J. K. Khanna & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 105078W), as an
internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial year 2015-16 or thereafter till March 31, 2017.

i) Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Ajay V. Mehta,
Practicing Company Secretary, Mumbai to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The
Secretarial Audit Report is provided as Annexure ll. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the
Secretarial Audit Report.

Committees of the Board & Management

The Company and its Board has constituted a set of independent, qualified and focused committees of the
Board constituting Directors of the Company. These Board Committees have specific terms of reference/scope
to focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. The Committees operate
as empowered agents of the Board as per their charter/terms of reference.

Currently, the Board has four (4) committees, Audit Committee, Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR)
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee. The matters pertaining to financial
results and auditors report are taken care of by the Audit Committee and those pertaining to remuneration of
Key Executives and Directors are within the realms of, Nominations Committee. The Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee, focuses on compliance of CSR policy and framework by the Company and
monitors the expenditure to be incurred by the Company. The Company also has a separate Committee to
look after Risk Management functions.

The table below prowdes a snap shot of the Board and committee composition as on March 31 2016
‘Board and committee composuttan as on March 31, 2016

Name - | Board |- . Audit CSR . "Nomination | RiskManagement '
P | ' committee committee " committee | - committee
Mr. Srinivasan Varadarajan C - - - -
Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf M - M M M
Mr. Bapi Munshi M M C M C
Mr. V.R Kaundinya | % - C -
Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi M C M M M

C—Chairperson, M~ Member

1) Audit Committee - The Audit Committee was constituted on January 11, 2013 and last re-constituted on
March 10, 2015. As on March 31, 2016, the Audit Committee comprised of three (3) members, of which two
(2) were independent directors. During the financial year 2015-16, the committee held five {5} meetings.
These were held on April 15, 2015, August 4, 2015, Qctober 28, 2015, January 21, 2016 & March 21, 2016.




23,

24.

AXIS FINANCE

- Name of the Director | -~ No. of meetings held, and attended, during tenure " % of attendance
Mr. V.R Kaundinya YES YES YES YES YES 100%
Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi YES YES YES YES YES 100%
Mr. Bapl Munshi YES YES NO YES YES 80%

1) Nomination Committee - The Nomination Committee was constituted on January 11, 2013 and re-
constituted on March 10, 2015. As on March 31, 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised of four (4}
members, of which two (2) were independent directors. During the financial year 2015-16, the committee
held three (3) meetings. These were held on April 15, 2015, January 21, 2016 & March 21, 2016.

. Name of the Director |~ No. of meetings held, and attended, duringtenure | " %ofattendance: -
Mr. V.R Kaundinya YES YES YES 100%
Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi YES YES YES 100%
Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf YES YES YES 100%
Mr. Bapi Munshi YES YES YES 100%

11} Risk Management Committee - The Risk Management Committee of the Company was constituted on
January 11, 2013 and re-constituted on March 10, 2015]. As on March 31, 2016, the Risk Management
committee comprised of three {3) members. During the financial year 2015-16, the committee held four (4)
meetings. These were held on April 15, 2015, August 4, 2015, October 28, 2015 & January 21, 2016.

 Name of the Director | . No. of meetings held, and attended, duringtenure | -~ % of attendance .~
Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi YES YES YES YES 100%
Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf YES YES YES YES 100%
Mr. Bapi Munshi YES YES NO YES 75%

V) CSR Committee - The CSR Committee was constituted on March 10, 2015. As on March 31, 2016, the
committee comprised of three (3) members Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi, Mr. Bapi Munshi and Mr. Bipin Kumar
Saraf. During the financial year 2015-16, the committee met once on January 21, 2016, which was attended by
ali the members,

Policies on appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section {3) of section 178

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicabie rules thereto as amended from time to time. The policy
shall apply to all Directors (Executive and Non-Executive}, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.
The Policy lays down the roles of the Committee, criterion for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial
Personne! and Senior Management and parameters for determining the remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is
enclosed herewith as Annexure- Il o

Human Resources

Your Company believes in providing a conducive and challenging work environment for nurturing potential,
encouraging performance and retaining talents at all levels. At the end of March 2016 the company had 34
employees including deputed staff from Axis Bank as against 23 as at March 2015, indicating 48% increase in
manpower by 11 employees at various locations and levels. As a part of our long-term vision, the company
consistently invests in employee training, helping grow the team’s learning curve.
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Your Directors place on record the appreciation of effort and dedication of the employees in achieving good
results during the year under review.

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, is
annexed as Annexure [V to this Report.

Reservation and qualification on Auditor’s Report

The notes to Accounts referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for
any further comments. The statutory auditors have not made any reservation or qualification in their Audit
Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company, being a NBFC, is engaged in the business of financing loans to corporates, institutions etc and
thus pursuant to Section 186 (11} of the Companies Act, 2013, lending business is an activity covered in the
ordinary course of business.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1} of section 188

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. Relevant Form (AOC-2} for
disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section {1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is given as Annexure V to this Report.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties
which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and
repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are audited and
a statement giving details of ail related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee for their
review on a periodic basis. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

Management Discussions and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed herewith as Annexure VI.

Conservation of energy & technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo
A. Since the Company does not carry any manufacturing activities, particulars to be disclosed with respect
to Conservation of energy & technology absorption under Section 134 (3) {m) of Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable. The Company is however, constantly
pursuing its goal of technological up-gradation in a cost effective manner for delivering quality customer
service,
B.  During the year under review, there has been no earnings and outgo in foreign exchange.

Risk Management

Periodic assessments to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks in
advance to enable the company to controt risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are classified as
financial risks, operational risks and market risks. The risks are taken into account while preparing the annual
business plan for the year. The Board is also periodically informed of the business risks and the actions taken
to manage them. The Company has formutated a policy for Risk management with the following objectives:

=  Provide an overview of the principles of risk management

= Explain approach adopted by the Company for risk management
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= Define the organizational structure for effective risk management

= Develop a “risk” culture that encourages all employees to identify risks and associated opportunities and
to respond to them with effective actions.

» {dentify, access and manage existing and new risks in a planned and coordinated manner with minimum
disruption and cost, to protect and preserve Company’'s human, physical and financial assets

Details on Corporate Sociaf Responsibility (CSR) policy and its implementation

CSR Policy has been framed in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder. As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” {CSR), the Company has
undertaken projects in the areas of Education, Livelihood, Health, Water and Sanitation. These projects are
largely in accordance with Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company had transferred Rs.1.22 Cr
to Axis Bank Foundation on March 23, 2016 for the purpose of expenditure towards CSR activities. The details
of the same is enclosed as Annexure — Vil to this Report as mandated under the said Rules.

Disclosures ahout annual performance evaluation by the directors of the Company of its own and
committees and individual directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of
independent directors and other directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors. The
criteria for performance evaluation covers the areas relevant to their functioning as independent directors or
other directors, member of Board or Committees of the Board.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.

In terms of the information required under Sub-section {3}{i} of Section 134 it is to be noted that there are no
significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future,

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. Te maintain its objectivity and independence, the internal Audit function reports to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Board. The Internai Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies at ali locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit function,
process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the
Board,

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for employee and also directors for the highest degree of
transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social responsibility. Any actual or potential violation of
the Code would be a matter of serious concern for the Company. The Company also has Whistle Blower Policy
to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

Employees of the Company are encouraged to use guidance provided in the Policy for reporting all allegations
of suspected improper activities.

Compliances of RBI Guidelines

The company continues to comply with the applicable regulations and guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India
as applicable to a Non- Banking Non Deposit Taking Systemically Important Loan Company {‘NBFC-ND-SI'). The
company has submitted returns with RBl on timely basis.
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37. Acknowledgement
The Directors gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, members, dealers,
vendors, banks and other business partners for the excellent support received from them during the year. The
Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted
commitment and continued contribution to the Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SRINIVASAN VARADARAIJAN BIPIN KUMAR SARAF
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEQ
DIN: 00033882 : DIN: 06416744

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 12, 2016

Place- Mumbai

CIN: Us5921MH1995PLC212675
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Annexure -1

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i} CIN: - U65921MH1995PLC212675

ii) Registration Date- 27/04/1995

iii) Name of the Company: AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
iv) CATEGORY OF THE COMPANY: - [PL. TICK]

(1) Public Company-V
(2)Private company-

SUB CATEGORY OF THE COMPANY: -[PLEASE TICK WHICHEVER ARE APPLICABLE]
1) Government Company-

2) Small Company-

3) One Person Company-

4) Subsidiary of Foreign Company-

5) NBFC-V

6) Guarantee Company-

7) Limited by shares - ¥

8) Unlimited Company-

9) Company having share capital-v

10) Company not having share capital-
11) Company Registered under Section 8-

v} Address of the Registered Office and contact details

Address : Axis House, Ground Floor, Wadia International Centre ,Worli
Town / City : Mumbai

District : Mumbai

State : Maharashtra




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Telephone :(With STD

022- 43255717

Area Code Number)

Pin Code 400025

Fax Number : 022-4325 5732

Email Address: Rajneesh Kumar@axisbank.com
Website (if any) htitp:/ / www.axisfinance.co.in/

vi) Whether Shares Listed On Recognized Stock Exchange(S) -No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Name of Registrar & Transfer Agents: KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PVT. LTD.

Address : Karvy House, 46, Avenue 4, Street No.1, Banjara Hills
Town / City : Hyderabad

District : Hyderabad

State : Telengana

Telephone :(With STD Area 040 - 23312454

Code Number)

Pin Code 500034

Fax Number : 040 - 23311968

Email Address : Varghese@karvy.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. products / services Product/ service of the company
1 Interest on Loans 65923 82.67%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Add:

S. | Name and Address | CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares | Applicable

No. | of the Company Subsidiary/ | held section
Associate

1 Axis Bank Limited | L65110G]J1993PLC020769 | Holding 100* Section 2(46)

*Including 60 shares (0.000019) held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited.
{Beneficial ownership is with Axis Bank Limited.)

Notel- As per Balance sheet there is no investment, so there is no subsidiary .
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Note 2-As per the definition of Associate Company “associate company”, in relation to another

company, means a company in which that other company has a significant influence, but which

is not a subsidiary company of the company having such influence and includes a joint venture

company.

Explanation. — For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least

twenty per cent of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement;

Therefore there is no Associate Company.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the | %
Shareholders beginning of the year year Change
during
the
year
Demat | Phy | Total % of | Demat Phys | Total % of
sical Total ical Total
Share Shares
s
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)
Individual/HU
F
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt (s)
d) Bodies Corp.
¢) Banks / FI 31,82,49 | 50** | 31,82,50, | 100* 36,82,49, | 50** | 36,82,50, | 100* 15.71%
,950* 000* 950* 000*

f) Any
Other....

Sub-total (A)
(1)-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / F1
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e} Any Other....
Sub-total (A)
(2):-

Total
shareholding
of Promoter {A)
= (A)YL)HA)2)

31,82,49
,950*

503{-*

31,8250,
000

100*

36,82,49,
950*

505(-3(-

36,82,50,
Qoo

100*

15.71%

B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI
¢) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture
Capital Funds
f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h} Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i} Others
(specify)
Sub-total

(B)(1):--

2, Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital uptoRs.
1 lakh

ii) Individual
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shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

¢} Others
(specify)
Sub-total
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)*
(B)2)

C. Shares held
by

Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

NIL

NIL

Grand Total
(A+B+(C)

31,82,50,000

36,82,50,000

15.71%

*Including 10 shares held by individual as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (Beneficial ownership
of which is with Axis Bank Limited.)

**Being shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (Beneficial ownership of

which is with Axis Bank Limited.)

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S1 | Shareholder” | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the year
No | s Name the year
No. of % of total | %of No. of Shares | % of %of % change
Shares Shares of | Shares total Shares in share
the Pledge Shares Pledged / | holding
company | d / of the encumber | during
encum compan | ed tototal | the year
bered y shares
to total
shares
1 | Axis Bank 31,82,50,000 | 100 NIL 36,82,50,000 | 100* NIL 15.71%
Limited
Total 31,82,50,000 | 100* NIL 36,82,50,000 | 100* NIL 15.71%

*Including 60 shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (Beneficial
ownership of which is with Axis Bank Limited.}

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
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51. No. | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning of the year Shareholding during
the year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the ¥31,82,50,000 | 100 *31,82,50,000 | 100
year
1 17.11.2015- Allotment of 5,00,00,000 *36,82,50,000
Equity Shares on Rights 100
basis
At the End of the year *36,82,50,000 *36,82,50,000
100

*Including 60 shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (Beneficial
ownership of which is with Axis Bank Limited.)

Note-Date wise Increase £ De orRote oldine durinethe e

feaseﬂs—fer—m&e&sejLéeee&se—{e—g—Allotment %#Faﬂsﬁe%/—beﬂ&s%swea{—eq—m%y—ete}—

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs): NA

Note- 100% shares are held by Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company including 60 shares
held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (beneficial ownership of which is with
Axis Bank.):

v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Name Designation Shareholding at the Cumulative
No beginning of the year Shareholding during the
year
No. of % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of the | shares | shares of the
company company
At the Beginning of the year:
1 *Srinivasan | Director 10 Negligible 10 Negligible
Varadarajan
2 | *Bipin MD & CEO 10 Negligible 10 Negligible
Kumar Saraf
At the End of the year:
1 *Srinivasan Director 10 Negligible 10 Negligible
Varadarajan
2 | *Bipin MD & CEO 10 Negligible 10 Negligible
Kumar Saraf




*held as a nominee of Axis Bank Limited

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/acerued but not due for

payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the

beginning of the

financial year

1) Principal Amount 8,495,121,436 20,186,401,747 | NIL 28,681,523,183

ii) Interest due but not

paid NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but

not due NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) 8,495,121,436 20,186,401,747 | NIL 28,681,523,183

Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

" Addition 5,390,837,951 NIL NIL 5,390,837,951

~ Reduction NIL 8,181,926,168 §,181,926,168

Net Change 5,390,837,951 8,181,926,168 NIL (2,791,088,217)

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i} Principal Amount 13,885,959,387 12,004,475,579 | NIL 25,890,434,966

it) Interest due but not

paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but 377,300,159 NIL INIL. 377,300,159

not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 14,263,259,546 12,004,475,579 | NIL 26,267,735,125

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S1.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD Total Amount
{(Rs. In Lacs)
Mr. Bipin
Kumar Saraf
1 Gross salary 99.40
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
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(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2} == | - 11.88
____ Income-tax Act, 1961

(c} Profits in lieu of salary under NIL
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option NIL

3 Sweat Equity NIL

4 Commission as % of profit NIL

5 Others, please specify Included in point 1
Variable Incentives above — part of 17(1)

above

Total (A) 111.28
Ceiling as per the Act 849.49
*5% of the net profit calculated as per
Section 198

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
no. Amount
(Rs. In
Lacs)
Msz. V.R Mrs. Madhu
1. Independent Directors Kaundinya Dubhashi
_ Fee for attending board / committee | 7.50 9.50 17.00
meetings
NIL NIL. NIL
.1 Commission
NIL NIL NIL
7" Others, please specify
Total (1) 7.50 9.50 17.00
NIL NIL
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
.. Fee for attending board /

C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD
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Slno. --Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel S
Company CFO Total
Secretary (Rs. In
Lacs)
1 Gross salary 29.82 60.90 90.72
{a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | NIL NIL NIL
Income-tax Act, 1961
() Profits in lieu of salary under NIL NIL NIL
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4 Commission as % of profit NIL NIL NIL
5 Others
Total 29.82 60.90 90.72

VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (Under the

Companies Act): NONE

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

NI Y

SRINIVASAN VARADARAJAN
CHAIRMAN
DIN: 00033882

Date: 12.04.2016
Place Mumbai

§

BIPIN KUMAR SARAF

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

DIN: 06416744
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(x) the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Whole Time
Directors of the campany;

* Percentage of variable pay for the MD & CEO to be capped at 70% of fixed pay {AFL is adhering to
RBi guidelines for Banks on the variable pay payahle to MD & CEO.

(xi) the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director 1o that of the employees who are
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year

Not Applicable
(xii) affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

We affirm that the remuneration paid is as per the said Remuneration Policy of the company.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of
the Company forms part of this Report. The Company had 2 employee(s) who were employed
throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration of mare than Rs. 60 lakh per annum and
none of the employee(s) were employed for part of the year and who was in receipt of
remuneration of more than Rs.5 lakh per month. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013, the copy of the financial statements of the Company including the consolidated financial
statements, the auditor’s report and relevant annexures to the said financial statements and
reports are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information in
respect of the said employees containing the particulars as specified in Rule 5(2) of the said rules
which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, he may write to the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Registered Office. The financial statements, reperts etc. of the
Company have been hosted on the website of the Company (www.axisfinance.co.in)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

- A

SRINIVASAN VARADARAJAN BIPIN KUMAR SARAF
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO
DIN: 00033882 DIN: 06416744

Date: 12.04.2016
Place Mumbai




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Annexure -V

FORM AOC -2
{Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the

Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014}

Form for disclosure of pariculars of conlracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parlies referred to in sub - section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length ransactions under third proviso thereto

1. Detdgils of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’'s length basis

a) | Name (s} of the related party and nature of | : | NIL
relationship
b) [ Nature of | 1 | NIL

confracts/arangements/transactions

c} | Duraiion of the confracts / arangements /|1 | NIL

transactions

d} | Salient terms of the contracts or arangements | © | NIL

or fransactions including the value, if any

e) 1 Justification for entering info such contracts or | @ | NIL

arrangements or fransactions

f} | Date {s) of approval by the Board ;| NIL
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any ;| NIL
h) | Date on which the special resolution was | : [ NiL

passed in general meeting as required under

first proviso to Section 188
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2. Details of material contfracts or arangement ar fransactions at arm's iength basis

a} | Name (s) of the related party and nature of Axis Bank Limited
reiationship
b} | Nature of i) Renf Paid
coniracts/arrangements/transactions 2) Bank Charges
3) Current Account Balance
4) LOC Account Balance
5) OPE Salary
4)  Capital Infusion
7) Interim Dividend Paid For F.Y
2015-14
8) OPE Reimbursement
91 Demat A/c Chgs
10} IPA Commission Charges Paid
11} Retainership Fees
Reimbursement
12) Arrangership Fees
13) Escrow Fees Paid
14} Interest Paid on Line of Credit
15) Processing Fees received
¢) | Duration of the contfracts / arangements / Continuous
fransactions
d) | Salieni terms of the coniracts or arrangements Refer Financial statements
or fransactions including the value, if any
e) | Daie (s) of approval by the Board, if any Transaction at arm's length and in
ordinary course of business
f) | Amount poid as advances, if any NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

a) a) | Name (s} of the related party and nature of

relationship

Axis Capital Limited

b)

Nature of

contracts/arrangements/transactions

1} Service charges (Exp)
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c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / Continuous
fransactions
d) Salient terms of the confracts or Refer Financial statements
arrangements or fransactions including the
value, if any
e) Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any Transaction at arm’s length and in
ordinary course of business
f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
4. Detdails of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
a) | Name Is) of the related porty and nature of Axis Securities Limited
relationship
b) | Nature of 1} Rent Paid
confracts/arrangements/transaciions 2) Internet Charges (Exp}
3) Demat Chgs
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / Continuous
fransactions
d} | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements Refer Financial statements
or transactions including the value, if any
e) | Date (s} of approval by the Board, if any Transaction at arm’s length and in
ordinary course of business
f} 1 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
5. Deiails of material contracts or grrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
a) | Name (s} of the related party and nature of Axis Trusiee Services Lid
relaiionship
b} | Nature of 1) Annual Fees
contracts/arangements/transactions
c) | Duration of the confracts / amangements / Continuous
transactions
d] 1 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements Refer Financial statements
or fransactions including the value, if any
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e)

Date (s} of approval by the Board, if any

Transaction at arm'’s length and in

ordinary course of business

f)

Amount paid as advances, if any

NiL

ML e

SRINIVASAN VARADARAJAN
CHAIRMAN
Din No.00033882

Place :

Mum_bcni

Date: 12.04.2014

-+

BIPIN KUMAR SARAF
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO
Din No. 06414744




AJAY V. MEHTA
COMPANY SECRETARY

20, C. J. New Kapol Niwas, 2™ Fioor, Haveli Cempound, M. G. Road, Ghatkopar (E), Mumbai 400 077
Contact: Cell: 69224 330 973 ¢ Email: avmehMS@aiLcom

Annexure J
Ev: 3 | r 2015-

1. Application made to Central Govt. in form CG-1 on 16.04.2015 towards application
for condonation of delay in filing form MGT-14 in respect of resolution passed at
Board meeting held on 15.05.2014 for Investment in 7.28% Redeemable Non-
Participating Non Convertible Preference Shares of M/s Axis Assets Management
Comipany Limited.

2. Order passed by CG vide its Order dated 16.06.2015 condoning delay w.r.t filing of e
form MGT-14 i.r.0. Resolution passed at Board Meeting held on 15.05.2014.

3. Special Resolutions passed at the AGM held on 18.06.2015 w.r.t

a) Increase In Authorised Capital of the Company from Rs.330,00,00,000/- to
Rs.1000,00,00,000/- by creation of 67,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
and consequential amendments in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association
and Article 3 of the Artilcles of Assoclation.

b) Increasing the Borrowing Powers of thé Company to Rs.10,500 crores over and
above the Paid up Share Capital and Free Reserves of the Company.

¢) Borrowing or Rasing of funds in following manner-:

1. Rs.300 Crores by issuance of part of the Tier II capital

I1. Rs.7000 Crores by issue of Commercial Papers.

III. Private Placement of Debentures of face value of Rs.10,00,000 each, in the
nature of Secured/unsecured, Redeemable, Non-Con\krt/ible Debentures, for the
aggregate amount up to Rs.1200 Crores.

d) Authority granted by Members to the Board of Directors to mortgage and/or
charge and/or sell and/or tease and/or dispose off all or any of the movable
and/or immovable properties and assets and the whole or substantially the
whole of the undertaking/s of the Company.

e) Increase in Remuneration of Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 06416744) of the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2015.

4, Execution of Debenture Trust Deed on 13.08.2015 for Issue of Debentures to the
extent of Rs.800 Crs.

5. Issue of 5,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at premium of Rs.10/- per share
on Right basis vide Resolution passed at Board Meeting held on 28.06.2015.

6. Allotment on 17.11.2015, 5,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium
of Rs.10/- per share on Right basis.
Contd...
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AJAY V. MEHTA
COMPANY SECRETARY

20, C. J. New Kapol Niwas, 2 Floor, Haveli Compound, M. G, Road, Ghatkepar (E), Mumbai 400 077
Contact: Cell: 09224 330 973 « Email: avmehta25@gmail.com

Date: 11* April, 2016.

To,

The Members,
Axjs Finance Limited
Mumbai

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

“Company. My respeonsibllity Is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on my audit.

1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected In secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriatenass of financial records and Book
of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
fimited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

prs®

AJAY V. MEHTA
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
A.C.5.9332 C.P.7247

PS; Attached hereto is our Secretarial Audit Report (Form No. MR-3) of Even Date.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

20, C. 4. New Kapol Niwas, 2° Floor, Haveli Compound, M. G. Read, Ghatkopar (E), Mumbai 400 077
Contact: Cell: 09224 330 973 » Email: avmehta25@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31% March, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,

The Members,

Axis Finance Limited
Mumbai

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Axis Finance Limited (hereinafter called
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in @ manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing my
opinien thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financlal year ended on 31% March, 2016 complied with the
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Axis Finance Limited ("the Company”) for the financial year ended
on 31* March, 2016 according to the provisions of:

A) (1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) & the rules made thereunder and the
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable;

(2) Listing Agreement/ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 i.r.o Listed Debt
Securities of the Company;

(3) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA"} and the rules made
thereunder;

(4) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-
under;
Contd...2
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20, C. J. New Kapol Niwas, 2" Floor, Haveli Compound, M. G. Road, Ghatkopar (E), Mumbai 400 077
Contact: Cell: 09224 330 973 » Email: avmehtazs@gmail.com

H 1

(5) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 and the Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Prohibition of

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;;

Banking Financial (ND SI), Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)
~ Directions;

(7} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; :

(é) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.
(9) The Bombay Stamp Act, 1958.
(10) The Information Technology Act, 2000.
1 have also examined compliance with the appiicable clauses of the following:

() Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, New Delhi,

B) During the period under review, provisions of the following Regulations (as
enumerated in the prescribed format of Form MR-3) were not applicable to the
Company:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

{li} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; '

(iiiy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; and The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations
2009;

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Reguiations
1998,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned herein above,

Contd...3
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I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors & Non-Executive Directors pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the relevant Act.

Adequate notice had been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and that a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Unanimous decisions were carried through as there was no case of dissent of any Director in
respect of any decision and was accordingly captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report.that there are adeguate systems and processes in place in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company te monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable taws, rules, regulations and guidelines as mentioned herein
above -

I further report that during the audit period the Company has specific events / actions as
detailed in Annexure I to this Report having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guldelines, standards, etc, referred
to herein above.

Place : Mumbai

Date : 11™ Aprif, 2016. W

AJAY V. MEHTA
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
A.C.S.9332 C.P.7247




ANNEXURE VH

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR) ACTIVITIES

{As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Corporate

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014)

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or
programs.

The CSR Policy was approved by the Committee on March 10, 2015 and subsequently was
put on the Company's website. Weblink to the Company’s CSR Policy:
http://www.axisfinance.in

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee. Shri Bapi Munshi (Chiarman), Shri Bipin Kumar
Saraf, Smt. Madhu Dubhashi

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs.61.12 crores

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above) — Rs.1.22
Crores

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year (2015-16); Rs. 1.22 crores
(b} Amount unspent , if any; NIL
(¢} Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
1y | (3) (4) (5} (6} {7) (8)
S. CSR Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount Cumulati | Amount spent:
project or | which programs outlay spent on the | ve Direct or through
No activity the {1) Local (budget) | projects or expendit | implementing
identified. | projectis | area or project or | programs ure upto | agency
covered | other (2) program | Subheads: | tothe
Specify the | wise (1} Direct reporting
State and expenditure | period.
district on projects
where oF programs.
projects or (2)
Programs Overheads :
was
undertaken




1. Social Rs. 1,22,24,557/-
Welfare Sasow .
Programs
of Axis
Bank
Foundatio
n*

TOTAL Rs. 1,22,24,557/-

* Give details of implementing agency: Axis Bank Foundation has been setup as a Public Trust
by Axis Bank as its CSR arm committed itself to undertake varicus socially relevant endeavors
with a special vision & mission to eradicate poverty, providing sustainable livelihoods, education
of the underprivileged, healthcare, sanitation, etc. (Social Welfare Programmes)

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent, of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide ther easons for not
spending the amount in its Board report. — NA

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy,
is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

bt A

Bipin Kumar Saraf Bapi Munshi

Managing Director & CEO {Chairman CSR Committee)
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Annexure 1l

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto as amended from time fo
time. This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

[NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Definitions:

"Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services

rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;

"Key Managerial Personnel” means:

i)  Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-
fime Director;

i} Chief Financial Officer;

i)  Company Secretary; and

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors. Normailly, this would comprise all members of

management, of rank eguivalent to Senior Vice President and above, including all functional
heads,

Objective:

The objective of the policy is to ensure that

» The level and compaosition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to atfraci, retain and
motivate directors of the qudlity required to run the Company successtully;

+ Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmarks; and




AXIS FINANCE
y R

+ To recommend io the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

» To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.

» To ensure that level and composition of remunerafion is reasonable and sufficient,
relaiionship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks,

e To ensure that the remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals

« To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or
enforced by any statutory nofification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

« To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of

its duties.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Commiitee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

i} The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to
become Directors and who may be appointed as Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

il The Committee shall ascertain the qudlifications, expertise and experience of the persons
to be appointed as Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and
recommend their appointment to the Board of Directors.

iil The decision of the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Commitiee
shall be final

iv) The appointment including tenure of Directors and Key Managetial Personnel shall be
subject to the policy of the company, provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and other
relevant [aws.

v} The Committee shall evaluate their performance on a yearly basis and recommend their

removat to the Board, if required.
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ANNEXURE- IV

Disclosure requirement in Annual Report as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 —Human
Resources

The information relating to managerial remuneration in terms of Rule 5 (1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014, are detailed as under: —

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each whole time director of the Company to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2015-16;

Ratio of the remuneration of the whole time director of the company to the median remuneration
of the employees of the company are, Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, MD & CEG -1: 6.93.

Information is only in respect of whole time directors who are on rolls of the Company as on 31°
March 2016

(i) the percentage increase in remuneration of each whole time director, Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Company, during the financial year 2015-16, are as under;

Percentage increase in remuneration of Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, MD & CEO was 9%, Mr. Amith lyer,
Chief Financial Officer was 18% & Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary was 6%

{iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees of the Company during
the financial year;

Median remuneration of employees of the company decreased by 18% during the financial year
2015-16, as compared to the financial year 2014-15. This is on account of addition of manpower in
FY 15 in the lower & middle level management.

{iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolis of the Company; -

The company had 28 permanent employees on its rolls as on March 31, 2016. Further there are six
personnel in the Company who are deputed from Axis Bank {the parent Company).

(v)the explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company
performance;

The company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are structured to
support the achievement of the Company's strategic business objectives. These strategic priorities
are cascaded through annualised objectives to the employees. Based on the Company's
performance, individual performance, market benchmarks on compensation and attrition trends,
compensation strategy including increment benchmarks are proposed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Directors of the Company for adoption by the Company.
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{vi) comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of
the Company; vz

As stated earlier, the company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are
structured to support the achievement of the company's strategic business objectives.

The company follows a KRA approach in designing its performance management system. Adequate
attention is given to robust goal setting process to ensure alignment of individual objectives to
support the achievement of business strategy, financial and non-financial goals across and through
the organization. The non-financial goals for employees includes customer service, process
improvement, adherence to risk and compliance norms, self-capability development and
hehaviours such as integrity and team management.

Accordingly the remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel has been decided based on the above
parameters.

{vii) variations in the market capitatization of the company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date
of the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in
the market quotations of the shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which the
company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies;

Not Applicable as our equity shares are not listed

{vili)  average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees of the company other
than its managerial personnel (viz. whole time directors of the Company} during the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

Average remuneration increase for Non-managerial personnel of the company during the financial
year was 7 % and the average remuneration increase for the said managerial personnel of the
company was around 9%

{ix) comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the
performance of the company;

The company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are structured to
support the achievement of the Company's on-going business objectives by rewarding
achievement of objectives linked directly to its strategic business priorities. These strategic
priorities are cascaded through annualised objectives to the employees.

The remuneration is decided taking into account the company’s performance, individual
performance and market benchmarks. The same is first approved by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and thereafter it is recommended to the Board
for its approval.

Accordingly, percentage increase in remuneration of Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, MD & CEO was 9%,
Mr. Amith lyer, Chief Financial Officer was 18% & Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary was 6%
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Annexure VI

Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPANY PROFILE

Axis Finance Limited (AFL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank, is registered with RBl as a
Systemically Important Nen-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company. AFL operates in niche
verticals such as Promoter Funding, Margin Funding, IPO Finance, Loan against Securities, FSOP
Financing, Real Estate Financing, Special Situation Lending and Related Advisory Services.

ECONOMIC REVIEW, INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

India’s macro fundamentals remain robust, due to both the drop in commodity prices, particularly crude
oil, and also the result of policy measures from the Union Government. The fundamentais compare
favourably to most of India’s EM peers. The current account deficit narrowed to 1.4% in April-December,
from 1.7% in the corresponding period of 2014-15, on the back of contraction of trade deficit.

The Union Budget for FY17 alse adhered to the announced path of consolidation, signaling a stance of
fiscal rectitude, which has further improved investor sentiment. The fiscal deficit has reduced from 5.7%
of GDP during FY12 to about 3.9% during FY16 and is budgeted at 3.5% for FY17. Taking advantage of
the drop in commodity prices, the Government has adopted policy reforms which have helped in taking
out supply side bottlenecks, thereby, creating more space for accommodative monetary policy actions.
Domestic interest rates were trending downward with a 75 bps reduction in repo rate by RBI during
FY16.

However, private sector capex remained weak largely on account of leveraged balance sheets and weak
sales growth of corporates. Capacity utilisation levels continue to remain low, with RBl surveys
indicating levels of around 70%. Cash flows of companies have reasonably improved, but relatively low-
interest coverage ratios are a concern. All these factors have contributed to weak economic activities.

OUTLOOK FOR 2016-17

There are signs of a gradual recovery in business in India, despite continuing headwinds from weak
exports and the agriculture sector. Global financial markets seem to have stabilised, although
risks. The order books of companies executing Government EPCs and other contracts have filled out,
which indicate that manufacturing growth might revive in FY17. The GDP growth is expected to improve
from 7.3% in FY16 to 7.6% in FY17, and even higher if the monsoon is normal. This is also reflected in the
IMF’s uprating of India’s 2016 growth forecast. CPI inflation has also remained anchored around 4.9% in
FY16, despite a second consecutive drought year, and is likely to increase only marginally in FY17. This
will also enable the Union Government to adhere to the Budgeted Fiscal Deficit target of 3.5% of GDP in
FY17, thereby achieving the desired aggregate demand tevel. The Rupee has remained stable and
foreign capital flows have started returning to India, as with other EMs. The growth-inflation trade-off
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provides room for RBI to cut its policy rates further. Given this outlook, credit offtake from banks and
NBFCs is expected to increase gradually during FY 2016-17.

The prudential norms for NBFCs pertaining to the recognition of NPA and capital adequacy are set to get
even tighter in FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18. By the end of FY 2016-17, the period for recognising NPAs
will reduce to 120 days and eventually to 90 days by the end of FY 2017-18 from the current 150 days.
Furthermore, the requirement of Tier-l capital will move from 8.5% in FY 2015-16 to 10% by the end of
FY 2016-17. Taking a proactive step, AFL has already adopted the 90-day NPA recognition norm and
accelerated provisioning against standard assets of 0.40% from FY 2015-16.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company’s AUM (Assets Under Management) representing the loan baok expanded to °
3,339 crores during FY 2015-16 from * 2,250 crores in FY 2(114-15, registering a growth of 48%.

Figin‘crs
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The average cost of borrowing for the Company
has reduced from 9.10% in FY 2014-15 to 8.53% in
FY 2015-16, in line with the interest rate movement
during the year.

Although the monetary policy stance of RBI
remained accommodative in FY 2015-16, the
system experienced some liquidity pressure in Q4.
The Asset Liability Management (ALM) position of
the Company remained comfortable.
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Key Financials Analysis
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AFL delivered robust financial performance during the year. Total eamings of the Company
increased 66%, from ¥ 224.26 crore in FY 2014-15 to ¥ 372.98 crore in FY 2015-16. PAT went up
42% to ¥ 110.76 crore during the sameperiod. AFL reported a healthy Return on Equity (ROE) of
16.4% in FY 2015-16. Return on Assets (ROA} of AFL steadily improved from 3.33% in FY 2014-
15 to 4.04% in FY 2015-16. The Company endeavours to enhance value creation further in

coming years.

AFL continues to remain a Zero NPA company.

Capital Management

AFL strives for constant enhancement of shareholder value by efficiently using the capital to
maximise return on equity. As on March 31, 2016, AFL remained well-capitalised. The Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood at 21.81%, which is wellabove the minimum capitalisation

requirements prescribed by the prudential norms.

As on March 31°* 2016 2015

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 21.81% 17.18%

Out of above

Tier | capital ratio 21.43% 17.02%

Tier If capital ratio 0.38% 0.16%
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS
AFL majorly operates through two verticals namely Wholesale Funding and Retail / HNI

business. Given below is an analysis of the performance of each segment.

Wholesale

Under wholesale funding, AFL is present into products such as Promoter Funding, Real Estate
Funding and Structured Funding,.

LOAN AGAINST SHARES / PROMOTER FUNDING
AFL lends to promoters of companies against their holdings in large cap listed companies.
AFL focuses on large and reputed promoter groups having substantial market capitalisation

and investment grade credit rating.

Loan against Shares remained an important area of operations for AFL in FY 2015-16. As
against an outstanding loan book of ¥ 622 crore as on March 31, 2015, the portfolio increased to
¥ 1,034 crore as on March 31, 2016, representing a growth of 66% during the year.

This segment accounts for nearly 31% of the loan book. AFL has achieved 100% client retention
in this business segment during FY 2015-16.
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REAL ESTATE FUNDING
AFL offers loans to real estate developers for meeting various pre and post construction

activities. The focus area of AFL in RE Funding is financing against ready/late stage residential

inventory across major markets in India.

This segment constitutes nearly 22% of the overall loan book. Loan book under the portfolio has
grown from ¥ 536 crores in FY 2014-15 to ¥ 743 crores in FY 2015-16,a growth of 39%.

STRUCTURED FUNDING

To meet unique and event-based financial requirements of corporates, AFL provides structured
loans. As on March 31, 2016, this portfolio constituted 32% of the loan book. In FY 2015-16, the
structured funding book increased by 32% to ¥ 1,068 crores from ¥ 809 crore in FY 2014-15.

RETAIL / HNI FINANCE

Although wholesale funding constitutes a major portion of AFL’s loan book, the company has a
considerable presence in the non-corporate / retail space wherein it offers some exclusive
products to its clients like Margin Trade Funding, IPO Funding, Loan against Shares/Mutual
Funds/Bonds, Loan against Property and ESOP funding,.

FY 16
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The retail loan book has grown significantly over the last two years. In FY 2013-14, retail
portfolio accounted for 6% of AUM, which increased to 14% in FY 2015-16. The total size of the
retail assets stood at ¥ 471 crore in FY 2015-16, out of which, 84% comprised of Loan against
Securities.

OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS
The Company expects to maintain the growth momentum in AUM with a strong emphasis on

the retail/HNI book. From 14% at present, the Company aims to increase the retail exposure to
20% over the next three years. AFL also aims to improve its geographical presence by setting

up loan origination centres in key markets for sourcing retail accounts.

The Company has adopted sound risk management practices. The thrust on secured lending

and firm linkage with the parent company has resulted in better risk management practices.

Credit Risk: AFL has structured and standardised credit appraisal processes including the
procedure of credit appraisal and review. The Company regularly monitors the portfolio

concentration by segment, borrower, and groups, as applicable.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate fluctuations affect the borrowing cost, eventually affecting all
business matrices. AFL borrows from a diverse base and at competitive rates. The inclusion of
interest reset option, put-call option in loan contracts enables the Company to mitigate interest

rate risks.

Market Risk: Since a substantial portion of AFL’s portfolio is secured by the pledge of shares
and other financial securities, a negative stock market movement and increased volatility
always remain risky. AFL has adopted sound risk management practices to identify and
mitigate risks.

Liquidity Risk: AFL's AUM Policy stipulates a broad framework for liquidity risk management
to ensure that the company is in a position to meet its daily liquidity obligations as well as to

withstand a period of liquidity stress from market-wide factors.

Operational Risk: AFL has created an enabling organisational structure for effective
operational risk management. The risk associated with various processes has been identified,

and necessary mitigating controls have been put in place.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

New technological platforms act as growth enablers and also allow the Company to
have stringent risk management processes in place. Over the last twelve months, the
Company has invested in procuring the latest hardware and software to meet the
requirements of business, risk and finance teams, which has led to higher productivity.
The Company endeavours to upgrade technological processes constantly and believes

that IT initiatives will play a crucial role in fueling higher growth.

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

AFL observes compliance practices of the highest standard. The Compliance team
closely monitors RBI and other notifications on NBFCs with special attention to those
relevant to the Company. The Company follows all prudential norms laid down for
NBFCs and submits all mandatory returns and statements in time. The Company has
put in place a robust framework of internal controls that include precise delegation of
authority and Standard Operating Processes which are available in all business
segments and functions. The Company follows a practice of monitoring various internal
control functions in-house as well as through external auditors whenever required or
mandated. The company also reviews risk management processes on a regular basis
and documents the results.

HUMAN CAPITAL

The Company's strong management team and talented, professional human capital
resource are its biggest strengths. The Human Resource (HR) function revolves around
creating and developing human capital by improving organisational effectiveness,
providing a safe and ethical work environment, and maintaining stability and
sustainability amidst the rapidly changing business environment. The total strength of
AFL’s workforce as on March 31, 2016, was 34 including staff deputed from Axis Bank.
AFL is an equal opportunity employer. Talent Acquisition and Leadership
Development remain the core objectives of AFL’s HR policies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Axis Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Axis Finance Limited ("the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respensible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
info account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under $Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reascnableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
-Company as at March 31, 2016, its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order') issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

L
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(a)

)

(3}

{d)

(e)

)

()]

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our Knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A" to this
report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial pesition.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:; 301003E

QTSN S

per Jltendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 12 April, 2016
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Annexure 1 referred to in our report of even date
Re: Axis Finance Limited (“the Company”)

(iXa)

(iXb)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and {ocation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(iXc) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the

()]

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(viixa)

(viid(b)

(viiXc)

(viii)

financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, the
title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(it) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iiiXa), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

To the hest of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable fo
the Company.

The Company is regular in .depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income-tax, service tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it.
The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax and cess are not applicable o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the frue and view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management,

we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulfed in repayment of dues to a financial
instituds nk or debenfure holders or government
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(x> Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the

financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management
and on an overalt examination of balance sheet, we report that monies raised by way of commercial
paper, non-convertible debentures and term loans were applied for the purposes for which they
were raised.

(9] Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purposes of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi} Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanation given by the management,
we report that managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvais
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
halance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence not
commented upon.

(xv) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and expianations given by the management,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him.

(xvi)  According to the Information and explanations given to us, we repori that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 301003E

O\“*&M -

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership Number: 103380

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 April 2016




i4th Fioor, The Ruby
SR Baruoi& Co. LLP 23 Snac e o
ar (Wes
Chartered Accountants M?meai-400 928, India

Tel 1 +91 22 6192 0000
Fax:+91 22 6192 1000

“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

To the Members of Axis Finance Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Axis Finance Limited (“the
Company'™) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to.
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controis operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internat financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of infernal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institufe of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Exptanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountanis of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the standalone financial statements of
Axis Finance Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, and the related Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our report dated April 12, 2016 and expressed
an upqualified opinion thereon.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
iCAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E

R

per Jitendra H Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 12-April-2016




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2016

Amount In Rs.

As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital 3 3,682,500,000 3,182,500,003
Reserves and surplus 4 3,572,372,119 2,719,190,619
7,254,872,119 5,901,690,619
Non Current Lizbilities
tong term barrowings 5 6,204,789,863 2,884,000,000
Other Non current liabilities 7 349,793,603 31,296,176
tong term provisions 8 39,065,845 18,552,044
6,593,649,311 2,933,848,220
Current Liabilities
Short term borrowings 6 19,435,645,103 24,697,523,183
Other current liabifities 7 293,164,924 1,137,345,049
Short term provisions 8 103,111,627 45,814,495
19,831,921,654 25,880,682,727
Total 33,680,443,084 34,716,221,567
ASSETS
Mon Current Assets
Fixed assets 9
Tangible assets 3,996,462 2,280,260
intangible assets 14,212,409 383,119
Capital work-in-progress 255,001 7,567,358
18,463,872 10,230,737
Deferred tax asset 29 43,029,017 18,176,178
Nen current investments 10 1,879,485,000 1,035,458,861
Long term leans and advances
a. Loans 11 9,500,5956,850 7,420,817,575
b, Others 12 38,567,744 27,625,516
Other Non current assets 13.2 20,525,918 7,640,605
11,500,668,401 8,519,949,472
Current assets
Current investments 0 532,271,861 12,503,718,212
Trade receivables 13.1 - 30,775,120
Cash and bank balances 14 1,457,477 103,595,287
Short term loans and advances
a. Loans 11 21,535,566,872 13,532,383,922
b. Others 12 4,173,284 3,473,502
(iher current assets 13.2 106,305,189 22,326,052
22,179,774,683 26,196,272,095
Total 33,680,443,084 34,716,221 567
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying nates are forming part of financial statements
As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

b

g — Srinivasan Varadarajan
Onvs Chairman
e DIN No : 00033882

For S.R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.301003E
Chartered Accountants

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No : 06416744

er jitendra H. Ranawat

ner .
bership No. :- 103380 - \V\U.LQV KUW u
Mumbai Amith iyer Rajneesh Kumar
Aprit 12, 2016 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
Armount In Rs.

For the year ended For the year ended
Note No. March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Income
Revenue from operations 15 3,729,896,108 2,237,007,557
Other income 16 - 5,603,427
Total income {A) 3,729,896,108 2,242,610,984
Expenses
Employee benefit expense 17 80,679,557 64,857,236
Finance costs 18 1,812,223,670 933,162,098
Provisions and write off 19 71,852,459 25,289,300
Other expenses 20 63,389,785 44,935,850
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 2,761,554 409,168
Total expenses (B) 2,030,807,025 1,068,693,652
Profit before tax (C) = (A)-(B) 1,698,989,083 1,373,917,332
Tax expense:
Current tax 616,191,461 400,165,400
Deferred tax - 24,852,839 (7,893,113)
Profit for the year 1,107,650,460 781,645,045
Earnings per equity share
(Face Value Rs. 10 per share)
Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 3.2% 2.88
Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 3.29 2.88
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
The accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For S.R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited
Firm Registration No.301003E
Chartered Accountants J/
— -
]! ) O V{D\Q\, W YR AN
G_T\ — Srifivasan Varadarajan Bipin Kumar Saraf
Chairman Managing Director
per litendra H. Ranawat DIN No : 00033882 DIN No : 06416744
Partner g
Membership No. :- 103380 . .
Place: Mumbai Y. Q}-‘M&Jv\, Ko wagun—
Date: April 12, 2016 Amith lyer Rajneesh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

Amount In Rs.
for the Year ended March  For the Year ended March
31, 2016 31, 2015
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,698,989,083 1,173,917,332
Adjustments for:
Depreciaticn 2,761,554 409,168
Provision against standard assets 71,852,459 25,289,300
Amortization of debenture premium - {1,430,915}
Interest on fixed deposit and debentures - {5,603,427}
Dperating profit before working capital changes 1,773,603,096 1,192,581,458
Movement in working capital:
Decreasef{increase) in long term loan & advances {2,079,779,275) {1,824,617,575)
Decrease/{ingrease) in short term loan & advances 18,003,882,732) {8,086,251,519)
Decreasef{increase) in trade receivables 30,775,120 {30,724,558)
Decreasef{increase) in other current assets (83,579,137) 6,564,170
Decreasef{ingrease) in other non current assets (12,885,313) {7,640,605)
Increasef{decrease} in short term provisions 4,895,016 1,096,384
Increase/(decrease} in other current liabitities {525,682,698) 1,151,965,694
Increasef{decrease) in Long term provisions 1,063,458 -
Cash generated from operations (8,895,872,466) {7.557,026,551)
Income tax paid [627,133,689) (400,878,155}
Net cash flow from operating activities {A) {9,523,006,155} {7,997,904,706)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received on fixed deposit and NCD - 5,603,427
Purchase of fixed assets {2,927,681) (2,161,253)
Payment for Intangibles {8,067,008) (8,002,447)
Maturity of bank deposits - 170,000,000
Proceeds from: sale of investment 211,162,009,222 74,493,639,498
Purchase of investment {200,034,589,011) (87,133,353,196)
Net cash flow from investing activities{B) 11,116,425,522 (12,474,273,971)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings {net of repayment) (1,841,088,217} 19,573,088,591
Proceed from issue of shares (net of issue expenses) 599,000,0C0 999,000,000
payment of dividend (753,468,960}
Net cash flow from financing activities{C) {1,695,557,177} 20,572,088,591
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and equivalents{A+B+C} (102,137,810) 99,909,914
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 103,595,287 3,685,373
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,457,477 103,595,287
Note: March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Cash and cash eguivalents includes:
Cash 970 3,795
Balange with banks 1,456,507 103,591,492
1,457,477 103,595,287

For $.R. BATLIBO] & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.301003E

Chartered Accountants —_—
6% :b_g\,u\ca v o~
q——

per litendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership No. :- 103320
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 12, 2016

For and on behaif of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Mar2 g

Srinivasan Varadarajan
Chairman
DIN No : 00033882

bt

Amith lyer
Chief Financial Officer

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No : 06416744

Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary

Membership No: A31230




ANIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

3. Share capital

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
T g
Authorized:
1,000,000,000 {31 March 2015: 330,000,000) equity shares of ¥10/- each 10,000,000,000 3,300,000,000
10,000,000,000 3,300,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
368,250,000 (31 March 2015: 318,250,000] equity shares of T10/- each 3,682,500,000 3,182,50C,000

[a) Recanciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

No. 3 No. I
At the beginning of the year 318,250,000 3,182,500,000 255,756,000 2,557,500,000
1ssued during the year 50,000,000 500,000,000 52,500,000 £25,000,000
Qutstanding at the end of the year 368,250,000 3,682,500,000 318,250,000 3,182,500,000

{b] Terms/right attached to equity shares
The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share.

te} In the event of liguidation of the Campany, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amaunts. The distribution will ke in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{d) Shares held by holding/ultimate helding Company and/or their subsidiaries/assodiates
Cut of equity shares issued by the Company, sharas held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are 35 below:

Name of shareholder

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
¥ z

Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company and its nominees
363,250,000 {March 31, 2015: 318,250,000) equity shares of T10/-each

{¢] Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

3,682,500,000 3,182,500,000

1
Name of sharehalder March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 ]
Na. % of holding No. % of holding
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid
Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company and its nominees 368,250,000 100% 318,250,000 100%

4. Reserves and surplus

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Security premium reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Add:- Addition during the year

Less:- Utilization during the year against share issue expense
Balance 3t the end of the year

Statutory reserve u/fs 45-1C of RBI Act
Balance as per last Salance Sheat
Add:- Addition during the year
Balance at the end of the year

surplus in the statement of profitand loss
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Profit for the year

Less:-Interim Dividand (Apprapriation} FY 2015-16
Less:-Tax on interim dividend

Less:-Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance at the end of the year

Fotal

5.1cng term borrowings

2 Z

1,260,000,000 £25,000,000
500,000,000 375,000,060
1,000,000 1,000,000
1,699,000,000 _ 1,200,000,000
304,500,000 148,100,000
221,600,000 156,400,000
526,300,000 304,500,000
1,214,690,619 586,445,574
1,167,650,450 781,645,045
{626,025,000) -
{127,443,960] -
{221,600,000) _ {156,400,000)
1,347,272,119_ 1,214,680,6128
3,572,372,119  2,718,150,619

Non-current
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Current maturities*
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2615

< Z 2 3
Debentures : Secured 6,104,000,000 2Z,884,000,000 250,000,000 1,100,000,000
Indian rupee term loan from bank : Secured 100,789,863 - - -
Total 6,204,789,863 2,884,000,000 256,000,000 1,100.000,000

a. Indian rupee term foan carries interest @9.30% p.a. The foan is repayable on builet payment after 2 years. Itis secured by hypothecation of receivable of the company.
* Amount disclesed under the head ‘Other Liabilities' (Refer Note No. 7).

B, Security details for Secured non canvertible debentures

Debentures are secured by: 1. First charge by way of mortgage onimmovable property. 2. Pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and account receivable upto 1 time cover.




<. Particulars of Secured non canvertible debentures

Particulars Face Value Quantity Date of Redemption As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31,
2016 2015
8.7535% AFL 21/01/2616 1,000,900 500 January 21, 2016 - 500,000,000
Zerg% AFL, 20th November 2017 1,000,800 300 Novernber 20, 2017 300,000,600 300,000,000
Zero%h AFL, 20th November 2037 1,000,000 70 Novemnber 20, 2017 70,000,000 70,000,000
Zero% AFL, 20th November 2017 1,000,000 130 November 20, 2017 130,060,000 130,000,000
Zero% AFL, 3rd March 2017 1,000,000 250 WMarch 63, 2017 250,000,000 250,000,000
8.5565% AFL 3rd March 2016 1,000,000 600 March 03, 2016 - £00,000,000
Zera% AFL, 12th April 2018 1,000,000 150 Aprif 12, 2018 150,060,000 150,000,000
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2013 1,000,000 130 April 10, 2018 130,000,000 130,000,000
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2018 1,000,600 70 April 10, 2018 70,000,000 70,000,000
8.24% AFL, 08th March 2018 1,000,060 50 harch 08, 2018 50,000,000 50,000,000
8.7944% AFL, 24th April 2018 1,000,000 180 April 24, 2018 180,000,000 180,000,000
8.7731% AFL, 28th March 2018 1,000,000 500 iviarch 28, 2018 500,000,000 500,000,000
Zero% AFL, 2nd May 2017 1,000,000 384 May 02, 2017 384,000,000 384,006,000
Zera% AFL, 10th April 2017 1,000,000 110 April 10, 2017 11¢,000,000 110,000,000
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2017 1,000,000 60 Aprii 10, 2017 0,000,000 60,000,000
Zerc% AFL, 3rd April 2018 1,000,000 350 April 03, 2018 350,000,000 350,000,000
Zero% AFL, 27th March 2018 1,000,000 150 March 27, 2018 150,000,000 150,000,000
Zero % AFL 0S OCT 2018 1,000,006 70 Qct 05, 30138 70,000,000 -
Zero % AFL,230CT 2018 1,000,000 420 Cct 73, 2013 420,000,000 -
Zero % AFL ,29 OCT 2018 1,000,000 280 Oct 29, 2013 280,000,000
8.53% AFL,27th Mavember 2017 1,000,600 250 Nov 27,2017 250,000,600
8.85% AFL 29 JAN 2019 1,000,000 100 Jan 29, 2019 100,000,000 -
ZERO % AFL,25 MAR 2019 1,000,000 1500 Mar 25, 72019 1,500,000,000
Zero 3% AFL,157TH JAN 2018 1,000,000 50 lan 15, 2019 50,000,000
8.79%AFL 9 TH APR 2019 1,000,000 500 Apr 9, 2019 500,000,000 -
Zero % AFL,197H JUL 2013 1,000,000 100 Jul 19, 2013 100,000,000 -
Zera % AFL,25TH APRIL 2019 1,000,000 50 Apr 25, 2018 50,000,000
Zero % AFL 06TH MAY 2019 1,000,000 50 May 06, 2019 50,000,000 -
Zero % AFL ,28TH JUNE 2019 1,000,000 100 June 28, 2019 100,000,600 -
Total £,354,000,000 3,584,000.000

The above Noa Convertible Debentures are classified as under:

As at March 3%,

As at March 31,

2016 2015
Non-current long term borrowings 6,104,00G,000 2,884,000,000
Current maturities of long term borrowings 250,000,000 1,100,000,000
Totad 635,40,00,000 3.98,4C,00,000
6. Short term borrowlings
March 31, 2016 narch 31, 2015
4 ke

Secured
Loan from banks

Unsecured

Loan from banks

Unsecured commercial paper
Less: Unexpired Discount

Tetal

7,431,169,524

971,747,988
11,150,000,000

(117,272,409} -

4,511,121,436

320,687,445
70,180,600,000
314,285,698

19,435,645,103

24,697,523,183

Short term berrowings amount o Rs. 7,431,169,524 (previous year ®s. 4,51),121,435) referred above are secured by pari passu first charge on all present and future book debts, receivables, loan assets of the

Company. These carry interest @ 9.20% to 10,.25%.

Unexpired discount on commercial paper is net of Rs. 117,272,409 [previous year Rs. 314,285,698] towards interest acerued but not due. These carry interest @ 8.47% to 5.20%. In respect of commercial paper

maximum amount outstanding during the year was Rs.41,458,898,967 {previous year Rs. 19,5880,523,112).

7. Other Liabilities

Long term Short term
March 31,2016  March 32,2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
4 T T g
Current maturities of long term borrowings - 250,000,000 1,100,000,G00
Interast accrued but not due 349,793,603 31,296,176 27,506,556 23,971,355
interast received in advance - - - 84,760
Creditors for expenses
-Due to holding Company "Axis Bank Limited' 7,063,752 6,439,752
-Due to others - 8,216,785 4,820,530
-Undisputed statutary dues - 377,831 2,028,652
Total 349,793,603 31,296,176 293,164,924 1,137,345,049
8. Provisions
Lang term Short term
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
z g k4 T

Provision against standard assets 38,002,337 18,552,044 88,239,372 35,837,256
Provision for expenses 1,528,062
Pravision for employee benefits
-Provision for compensated absences 1,663,458 - 239,160 1,035,016
-Provision for gratuity - - 105,032 819,223
-Empioyee benefit payable - - 13,000,000 8,123,000
Total 39,065,845 18,552,044 102,111.627 45,814,495
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10. Investment

Non current Current Maturities
March 31,2016 March 31,2015 March 31, 2016 wiarch 31, 2015
T Z i 2
Investment in debenture/bands (vafued at cost uniess stated otherwise)
Quoted
110 {Previous year 110) Annapurna Microfinance Private Limited {redeemabie on 15 April 2016) - 30,018,106 2,518,106
110 {Previous year 110) Arohan Financial Services Private Limited (redeermable on 15 April 2016} - 29,577,841 2,477 841 -
56 (Previaus year 66) Asirvad Micro Finance Private Limited {redeemable on 15 Agril 2016) - 18,010,863 1,510,863 -
900 [Pravious year 500) Dalmia Bharat Cement Limnited 900,000,000 - - 500,000,000
100 {Previous year 100) Disha Microfin Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) . 27,179,200 2,179,200 -
110 {Previous year 110] Future Financial Services Ltd (redeemable on 15 April 2016} . 29,897,120 2,397,120 -
78 (Previous year 78} India Schaol Finance Campany {redeemable on 15 April 2016) - 21,285,566 1,785,566 -
77 {Previous year 77) Intrepid Finance and Leasing Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) - 21,040,768 1,790,769 -
110 {Previous year 110} Pahal Financizt Services {redeemabte on 15 April 2016} - 30,018,106 2,518,106
132 {Previous year 132) Suryoday Microfinznce Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) - 35,827,995 2,827,995 -
Nil {Previous year 89) Svasti Micrafinance Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2015) . . - 3,718,212
150 {Previcus Year NIL) NCD - DCB Power Venlures Lid{redeemable on 30 September 2018) 150,000,000 - - -
150 {Previous Year NiL) NCO - DCB Power Ventures Lid{redeemablz on 30 September 2018} 150,000,000
150 {Previous Year NiL) NCD - DCB Power Ventures Ltd{redeemable an 30 September 20204 150,000,000
150 {Previous Year NIL} NCD - DC8 Power Ventures Lid{redeemable an 30 September 2021} 150,000,000
150 [Previous Year NIL} NCD - DCB Power Ventures Ltd{redeemnable on 30 September 2022] 150,000,000
99 [Previous year 99) SV Creditline Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) - 27,016,295 2,266,295 -
2,420 {Previous year 4,428) 8.67% National Hydrozglectric Power Corporation [redeemable on 02 November 2033) 4,420,400 4,420,000 - -
767 {Previous year 757) 8.67% Pawer Finance Corporation Limited {redeemable on 16 November 2033) 767,000 767,000 - -
121,093 (Previous year NIL } 7.35% tndian Railway Finance Corparation Limited {redeemable on 22 March 2031) 121,093,000
103,205 {Previous year NiL } 7.35% National Bank For Agriculture And Rural Development {redeemable on 23 March 2031} 103,205,000
Unquoted
510 {Previous year 760) Azalea Enterprises Private Limited {redeemable on 16 March 2018} 760,000,000 510,000,000 B
Investment in Mutual funds {valued at lower of cost or market value)
Unquoted
Autis Liquid Fund - I? - Growth - . - 12,000,000,000
Total 1,879,485,000 1,035,458,861 532,271,861 12,503,718,212
1. Aggregate amaunt of quoted investrment at market value Rs 1,936,760,312 |Previous year Rs. 794,162,215}
2. Aggregate amount of unquoted investments at cost Rs. 510,000,000 (Previous year 12,760,000,000}.
11. Loans
Non current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31,2015  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
4 I 4 T

Secured loans 9,500,596,850 7.420,817,575  19,835,566,872 12,282,383,922
Unsecured loans - - 1,700,000,000 1,250,000,000
Total 9,500,596,850 7,420,817,575  21,535,566,872 13,532,383,922

The classification of leans under RBI guidelines is as under:

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

I Z

(i) Standard assets 31,036,163,722  20,953,201,495
{ii} Sub-standard assets - -
{iif) Doubtful assets -

{ivl Loss assets - -
Total ** 31,036,163,722  20,953,201,496
[The above Loans are classified as under: Asat March 31,  As atMarch 31,

2016 2015

Non-currant secured loans 9,500,596,850 7,420,817,575
[Current secured and unsecured loans 21,535,566,872 13,532,383,922
Total 31,036,163,722  20,953,201,497
**Laans to the extent of Rs. 29,33,61,63,722 (previous year Rs.19,703,201,495) are secured by:

(1) Hypothecatian of assets andfor

{il) Mortgage of property andfor

[iii) The company has alse taken corporate guarantee/personal guarantee of corporate/directors in certain cases aver and above of security(disclosed above}.

[iv] Pledge of shares & other financial securities.

12. Others

Non-current Current
Miarch 331, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
T I Z T

Other loans and advances

Security deposits, unsecured, considered good 6,500,000 6,500,000 - -
Advance tax {net of provision for tax } 32067744 21,125,516 - -
Prepaid expenses - - 4,148,297 3,452,652
Other advances 24987 20,850

Total 38,567,794 27,625,516 4,173,284 3,473,502




13. Trade receivables and other assets

13.1 Trade receivables

Non-¢urrent Curreat
March 31, 2016 March 31,2015  March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
4 T g k4
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six menths from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful -
Provision for doubtful recewables -
(a) . -
Qutstanding for a period less than six months fram the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considerad good - - 30,775,120
Doubtful - - -
- 30,775,120
Pravision for daubtful receivables - - - -
{8 - - - 30,775,120
Total [A) + (B} - - - 30,775,120

13.2 Other assets

Non current

March 31, 2015 March 31,2015 March 31, 2016

Current

March 31, 2015

T I < {
Interest accrued but not due on others 20,525,918 7,640,605 106,305,189 22,326,052
Total 20,525,918 7,640,605 106,305,189 22,326,052
14. Cash and bank balauces
Non current Current
March 31, 2016 March 31,2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
I < T T
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Cash on hand - - az0 3,795
Bafances with banks:
-0ncurrent accounts - - 1,456,507 103,591,492
- On overdraft accounts - -
- Deposits with ariginal matunity for less than 3 months - - - -
A - - 1,457,477 103,595,287
Other bank balances
~ Deposits with ariginal maturity for more than 12 months - -
- Depasits with originai maturity for more than 12 months under lfien - - -
- Bepasits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months - - -
— Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 menaths under lien - - -
B - - - -
Total [A+B} - - 1,457,477 103,595,287

15. Revenue from operations

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

2016 2015

< i
Interest income
Interest income on loans 3,083,340,732 1,748,601,140
Interest income on investments 169,098,718 84,197,450
Qther operating revenue
Income from processing fees 336,933,915 256,759,327
Income from advisory fees 61,500,000 49,450,000
Profit on sale of investments 71,913,424 92,440,424
Other operating Income 1,108,319 5,558,216
Total 3,729,856,108 2,237,007 557

16. Other ingome

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

2016 2015

k4 z
interest on fixed deposit 5,603 427
Total 5,603,427
17, Employee benefits expense

For the year For the year

ended March 31, ended March 31,

2016 2015

4 ke
Saiaries, Wages and Bonus 77,253,742 62,372,817
Contfibution Lo provident & other funds 2,041,668 1,318,820
Gratuity Expense 105,032 765,269
Staff welfare 1,279,114 440,330
Total 80,679,557 64,897,236
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Corporate information

Axis Finance Limited is a public Company domiciled in india and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a non-deposit accepting non-banking finance Company or NBFC-ND-
St registered with Reserve Bank of india (RBI). The Company is engaged in the business of financing of
ioans.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to
comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companies
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis and under the historical cost convention.

The Company follows the prudential norms issued by Reserve Bank of India for asset classification,
income recognition and provisioning for non-performing assets. Besides, additional amount is
written/off provided for where the management, on a review, considers it necessary.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognized:

a. Interest and other dues are accounted on accrual basis except in the case of non-performing loans
where it is recognised upon realisation, as per the income recognition and asset classification norms
prescribed by RBI.

b. Incame on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a straight-line
method.

c. Dividend is accounted when the right to receive is established.

Front end fees on processing of loans are recognised upfront as income.
Profit/{loss) earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/{loss) on sale of
investments is determined based on the 'weighted average' cost for investments.

f.  All other fees are recognized when reasonable right of recovery is established, revenue can be reliably
measured and as and when they become due.

g. Other revenue is recagnized an accrual basis and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization g
collection.
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v.

Tangible and intangibie fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

Subseguent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
lass when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line hasis using the rates arrived
at, based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated
separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal
asset. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation and amortization on its Fixed
assets.

Assets Estimated Useful Life (in years)

Tangible Assets:

Computers 3
Servers 6
Furniture & Fixtures 10

Office Equipment

Vehicles 4

Intangible Assets:

e :
Ay

e
-

Software 5

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful life of
the following class of asset.
e Vehicles are depreciated over the estimated useful life of 4 years which is lower than those
indicated in schedule Il

. Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent

iy

& . . .
approgriate valuation model is used.
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After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
usefui life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment 10ss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisioning / write-off of assets

Non-performing loans are written off / provided for, as per management estimates, subject to the
minimum provision required as per Non- Banking Financial (Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudentiat Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.

Provision against loans and advances:
Provision on Standard Assets i.e. loans and advances is made at 0.40%.

Loans

Advances are classified into performing and non-performing advances (‘NPAs’}) as per the RBI guidelines
and are stated net of specific provisions made towards NPAs. Further, NPAs are classified into sub-
standard, doubtful and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by the RBI. Provisions for NPAs are made
for sub-standard and doubtful assets at rates as prescribed by the RBL.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments in accordance with the RBI
guidelines and Accounting Standard 13 on ‘Accounting for investments’ as notified under the Companies
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 . All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly
acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities
issued.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a
part of the cost of such assets upto the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing
costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss.
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a. Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

b. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

c. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized
for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

d. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes
unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized.

e. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down

the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonable certain or virtually

~ certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be

realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

f. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

XlI. Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering alt employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from
employment after serving for the stipulated period mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972".
The Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an externat actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Leave encashment
Accumulated [eave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short term

at, it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the year end
ny treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-{gj:
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employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date

Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantiaily all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
teased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and
are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and on hand,
fixed deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Cash and cash eguivalent does not include fixed deposit which is lien marked against borrowing.
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Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account — ¥ 26,99,014 (Previous

Year< 1,515,000).

There is no contingent liability as at March 31, 2016 {previous year ¥ Nil).

There are no restructured foans as at March 31, 2016 (previous year  Nil).

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS} 20

“Earnings per share”

Particulars 2015-2016 2014 - 2015
3 I

Basic

Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 1,107,650,457 781,645,045

Weighted Average Number of Shares B 336,829,235 271,160,959

Basic Earnings per share A/B 3.29 2.88

Diluted

Adjusted Profit after tax C 1,107,650,457 781,645,045

Weighted Average Number of Shares 0 336,829,235 271,160,959

Diluted Earnings per share /D 3.29 2.88

Nominal Value per share 10 10

Segment Information :

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of financing of loans and its business operations are
concentrated in India. Accordingly, there are no separate business segments and geographical segments
as per Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of

27.

India.

Related Parties disciosure:

Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Accounting Standard ~ 18:

List of Related Parties:-
Parties where control exists: Holding Company
Axis Bank Limited (“ABL")

Fellow subsidiaries companies

Axis Private Equity Limited {"APEL")

Axis Securities Limited {“ASL")

Axis Mutual Fund Trustee Limited (“AMFTL")

Axis Trustee Services Limited (“ATSL")

Axis Asset Management Company Limited ("AAMCL")
Axis Bank U.K. Limited {("ABUKL")

Axis Capital Limited ("ACL")

Axis Securities Eurape Limited (“ASEL")

Key management person
Mr. Bipin K Saraf, MD
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Transactions with related parties

Holding Fellow Key
Particulars Company Subsidiary Management Total
z 3 Personnet 3
4
Income
Processing fees 98,877,989 - - 98,877,989
{ABL) (27,901,326) () {-) (27,901,326)
Interest an fixed - - - -
Deposit (ABL) (5,603,427) (-) (-) (5,603,427)
Dividend Received - - - -
(AAMCL) (-) (1,396,164} (-) (1,396,164}
Gratuity Received - - - -
(ACL) {-) {53,954) {-) (53,954)
Capital Receipts and
Payments
Purchase of fixed - - - -
asset (ABL) (651,427) (-} (-) (651,427)
issue of Equity Share 1,000,000,000 - - 1,000,000,000
Capital {including (1,000,000,000) {-) {-) {1,000,000,000)
Share premium) (ABL)
Investment in - - - -
Preference Shares -) {200,000,000} {-) {200,000,000)
(AAMCL)
Redemption of - - - -
Preference Shares {-} {200,000,000) (-) {200,000,000)
(AAMCL)
Expenses
Dividend Paid (ABL) 626,025,000 - - 626,025,000
() {-) () {-)
Rent paid (ABL) 9,612,300 - - 9,612,300
{9,612,300) (-) {-) (9,612,300)
Rent paid (ASL) - 256,500 - 256,500
(-} (-) () (-}
Bank charges (ABL) 8774 - - 8,774
{9,715) {-) {-) (9,715}
Reimbursement of 29,080,849 - - 29,080,849
staff cost (ABL) {26,979,669) {-) {-) (26,979,669)
Interest paid on 18,102,981 - - 18,102,981
borrowings (ABL) (15,900,549) (-) {-) {15,900,549)
internet charges paid - 112,738 - 112,738
(ASL) {-} (117,572) () (117,572)
Demat Charges (ASL) - 39,476 - 39,476
(-) (71,898) (-) (71,898)
Demat Charges (ABL) 20,242 - - 20,242
{-) {-) {-) ()
- 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
{-) (500,000) (-) (500,000}
/)
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Salary, Rent and - - 11,128,033 11,128,033
contribution to PF ) (-} (10,420,407) (10,420,407)
Service charges {ACL) - 1,280,492 - 1,280,492
() (995,564) (-) (995,564)
Other Reimbursement 6,006,909 - - 6,006,909
of Expenses (ABL) (5,976,868) B ) (5,576,868)
Closing Balance
Share Capital 3,682,500,000 - - 3,682,500,000
(ABL) (3,182,500,000) () {-) (3,182,500,000)
Sundry receivables - - - -
(ABL) ) {-) (-} ()
Short term borrowings 971,747,938 - - 971,747,988
(ABL} (320,687,445} (-) (-) (320,687,445)
Interest receivable - - - -
{ABL) () (-} {-) {-)
Current account 1,035,813 - - 1,035,813
balance (ABL) (101,457,220) (-) (-) (101,457,220)
Processing fees - - - N
Receivable (ABL) (17,571,610} {-) () (17,571,610}
Sundry payables {ABL) 7,063,752 - - 7,063,752
(6,439,752) (-} {-) (6,439,752)
Sundry payables - 44,159 - 44,159
(ASL) {-) (25,583) {-) {25,583)
Sundry payables - - - -
{ATSL) {-) {-) () {-)
Sundry payables - - - -
{ACL) {-) (-) {-) (-)
Note: -

1. Related party relationships and transactions have been identified by the Management and relied

upon by the Auditors.

2. The remuneration to the key managerial person does not include provisions made for gratuity and
leave benefits as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

3. Figures in bracket pertain to previous year.

28. Gratuity and other benefit plans
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or
more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance

policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statemeny

NCE
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Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)*:

2015-16 2014-15

) R)

Current service cost 309,318 179,382
interest cost on henefit obligation 215,371 175,494
Expected return on plan assets (150,243) {23,399)
Net actuariat (gain)/loss recognized in the year (269,041) 488,014
Past service cost - -
Transferred from group Company - -
Net benefit expense/(income) 105,405 819,491

Provision for gratuity recognized in Balance Sheet™:

2015-16 2014-15

) )
Projected benefit obligation (3,124,216) (2,709,067)
Fair value of plan assets 3,019,183 1,889,884
Less: Unrecognised past service cost - -
Plan liability 105,033 819,223
Actual return on plan assets
2015-16 2014-15
R} )
Expected return on plan assets 150,243 23,399
Actuarial gains/{losses) on plan assets 159,501 {4,757)
Actual Return an plan assets 309,744 18,642
Changes in the present value of the projected benefit obligation are as follows™:
2015-16 2014-15
®) )
Opening projected benefit obligation 2,709,067 1,870,934
Interest cost 215,371 175,494
Current service cost 309,318 179,382
Liability transferred in - -
Actuariat (gains)/losses on obligation (109,540) 483,257
Closing projected benefit obligation 3,124,216 2,709,067

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows™*:

2015-16 2014-15

) )
Opening fair value of plan assets 1,889,844 249,457
Expected return 150,243 23,399
Contributions by employer 819,595 1,621,745
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gains/{losses) 159,501 {(4,757)
Closing fair value of plan assets 3,019,183 1,889,844

March 31,2016  March 31,
100%

L
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The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on

that date, applicable to the period cver which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown

below™®:

2015-16 2014-15
Discount rate 7.96% 7.95%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.96% 7.95%
Employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment

market.
Amounts for the current periods are as follows*:
2015-16 2014-15
) )
Projected benefit obligation 3,124,216 2,708,067
Plan assets 3,019,183 1,889,844
(Surplus) /deficit 105,033 819,223

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities -
Experience adjustments on plan assets -

*Information provided to the extent available with the Company.

29. Deferred taxation:

in accordance with Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income” (AS 22}, the Company
has accounted for deferred taxes during the year. Deferred tax comprises of timing difference on

account of following:-

Deferred Tax Asset/{Liability) 2015-16 2014-15
) )
Depreciation (1,111,541) {124,603}
Provision for leave encashment 450,810 (186,142}
Contingent provision on standard assets 43,689,748 18,486,923
Total 43,029,017 18,176,173

. Information related to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Act) has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company. There is no outstanding balance due to such parties at year end. (Previous year Rs. Nil).

31. Foreign currency expenditure and foreign currency income during the year was nil (previous year nil).

32. Capital to Risk-Asset Ratio (CRAR)

Sl. No. ftems 2015-16 2014-15
() CRAR (%) 21.81%  17.18%
. (i} [CRAR- Tier | Capital (%) 21.43% 17.02%
/@@ (i) ICRAR- Tier Il Capital (%) 0384  0.16%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital

fasf
1o

MR Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments
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33. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15*
7 <
a) Direct Exposure
{i) Residential Mortgages 264,332 ,864.64 20,111,448
{ii) Commercial Real Fstate 9,618,773,554.86 5,969,861,325

{iii} tnvestment in Mortgage Backed Securities{MB5) and
other securitised exposures

{a} Residential - -

{b) Commercial Real Estate - -

b} Indirect Exposure - -

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 9,883,106,419.50 5,989,972,774

34. No frauds have been reported during the current year and previous year.

35. The Company has not entered into any derivative transaction {including forward rate agreement
/interest rate swap/ Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives) during the current year and
previous year and there is no outstanding derivative transaction as on 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015 respectively.

36. There has not been any limit exceeded for single borrower limit and group borrower limit by the
Company in current year and previous year.

37. There are no advances/projects financed by the Company wherein intangible security such as rights,
licences, authorizations etc. are charged as collateral.

38. There are no registrations obtained from other financial sector regulator (other than RBI) by the
Company in current year and previous vear.

39, There have not been any penaities imposed by RBi and other regulators on the Company in current year
and previous year.

40. India Ratings and Research Private Limited has accredited the following ratings to the Company.

Name of Rating Agency Type Ratings | Amount (Rs. Tenure Validity
in crores)
India Ratings and Research | Longterm | IND AAA | 1,200 - Yearly Surveillance
Private Limited Short term | IND Al+ | 5,500 12 28" February 2017
manths

41. During the year, the holding company issued stock options to certain employees of the halding
company who are on deputation with the Company. Since these stock options are issued by the holding
company directly 1o the employees of the holding company, and the related costs, if any, will be borne
by the holding company, no provision is made in the accompanying financials statements.
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

43. investments

{Amount in )

Current Previous
Year Year

Particulars

(1) |Value of Investments

(i} |Gross Value of investments
{a) [In India 2,411,756,861| 13,539,177,074
(b} {Outside India, - -
{ii) {Provisions for Depreciation
{a} |In India - -
{b) |Qutside India, - -
{iii) |Net Value of Investments
{a} {in India 2,411,756,861| 13,539,177,074
(b) |Outside india. - -

(2) |[Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.

——

(i} [Opening balance - -

{ii} |Add : Provisions made during the year - -

{ifi} {Less : Write-off / write-back of excess - -
provisions during the year

{iv) |Clasing balance . i

44. There are no securitisation transactions entered into by the Company during the current year and previous
year. Also, the Company does not have any securitisation exposures during the current year and previous
year.

45. The Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for asset
reconstruction and also not undertaken any assignment transactions during the current year and previous
year.

46. The Company has not purchased/sold any non performing financial assets during the current year and

previous year.

47. There has not been any financing of parent Company products by the Company during the current yeapasd
previcus year.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

48. Exposure to Capital Market

{Amounting)

Particulars

2015-16

2014-15

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

(ii)

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in
shares {including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

4,529,618,738

1,335,605,140

advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

11,689,008,857

9,773,698,513

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds Le. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
'does not fully cover the advances;

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers;

4,103,563

(vi}

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

{wvii}

bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues;

{viti)

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

16,222,731,158

11,109,303,653

49. Provisions and Contingencies

The break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss
Account is as below:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

4 g

Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -

Provision towards NPA - -
Provision made towards [ncome tax 616,191,460, 400,165,400

_|Other Provisions and Contingencies

Provision for Standard Assets 71,852,459 25,289,300
Total 687,454,215 425,454,700




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

50. There have been no drawn down reserves during the current year and previous year.

51. Concentration of Advances

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Total Advances to Twenty Largest Borrowers Rs. 1,590.73 crores T 1145.47 crores
Percentage of Advances to Twenty Largest Borrowers 51.25% 54.67%
to Total Advances

52. Concentration of Exposures

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Total Exposure to Twenty Largest Borrowers / Rs. 1,709.44 crores 3 1145.47 crores
customers
Percentage of Exposures to Twenty Largest Borrowers 43.68% 53.80%
/ Customers to Total Exposure of Axis Finance on
borrowers / customers

53. There are no NPAs of the Company far the current year as well as previous year.

54. There are no Off-Balance Sheet SPVs of the Company for the current year as well as previcus year.

55. Customer Complaints

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
{a) |No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
{b) [No. of complaints received during the year NiL NiL
{c} |No. of complaints redressed during the year NIL NIL
{d) |No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NIL NIL

56. Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current year’s
presentation.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

57. Amount Spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR}

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
3
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company 12,224,577 5,356,390
during the year
b) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st In cash Yet to be paid Total
March, 2016: in cash
(i} | Construction/acquisition of any asset
(i) | On purposes other than (i) above 12,224,577 - 12,224,577
b) Amount spent during the vyear ending on 31st In cash Yet to be paid Total
March, 2015: in cash
(i} | Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii} | On purposes other than {i} above 5,356,390 - 5,356,390

For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

b

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.301003E
Chartered Accountants

\\Mn A
77 Srinivasan Varadarajan Bipin Kumar Saraf
q—S‘ Chairman Managing Director

DIN No: 06416744

W DIN No: 00033882
Dt

per Jitendra H. Ranawat

Partner — partde Ko as
Membership No. :- 103380 Amith lyer Rajneesh Kumar
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: April 12, 2016 Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking
financial company

)
Amount
Amount overdue
Amount overdue Amount as at
outstanding as | as at Mar | outstandingas | Mar 31,
at Mar 31,2016 31,2016 | at Mar 31,2015 2015

Liabil

ities side :

(1)

Loans and advances availed by the non-
banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a} Debentures : Secured

6,731,300,159

4,039,267,531

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits*)

(b) Deferred Credits

(c) Term Loans

100,789,863

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

{e) Commercial Paper

11,032,727,591

19,865,714,302

(f) Other Loans (Bank's Line of Credit)

8,402,917,512

4,831,808,880

Assets side :

(2)

Break-up of Loans and Advances including
bills receivables [other than those included in
(4) below] :

(a) Secured

29,336,163,722

19,703,201,496

(b) Unsecured

1,700,000,000

1,250,000,000

{3)

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire
and other assets counting towards AFC
activities

(i} Lease assets including lease rentals under
sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC
activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

I o)Loans other than (a) above

T
R




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

(4)

Break-up of Investments :

As at Mar
31, 2016

As at Mar
31,2015

Current Investments :

1. Quoted :

{i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

22,271,861

503,718,212

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

{v}) Others {please specify)

2. Unquoted :

{i) Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference

(ii} Debentures and Bonds

510,000,000

(ifi} Units of mutual funds

12,000,000,000

{iv) Government Securities

{v) Others (please specify)

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted :

(i} Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

1,879,485,000

275,458,862

{
{iii) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities

(v) Others {please specify)

2. Unquoted :

{i} Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds

760,000,000

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

{v) Others {please specify)

2,411,756,861

13,539,177,074




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

(5)

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2)

Amount net of provisions as at Mar 31,2016

Amount net of provisions as at Mar 31, 2015

Category Secured

Unsecured

Total

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related
Parties **

(a}

Subsidiaries -

(b}
Companies
in the same

group -

{c} Other
related
parties -

2. Other
than related
parties

29,336,163,722

1,700,000,000

31,036,163,722

19,703,201,456

1,250,000,600

20,953,201,496

Total 29,336,163,722

1,700,000,000

31,036,163,722

19,703,201,496

1,250,000,000

20,953,201,496

(6)

Investor group-wise classification of ali investments (current and
long term) in shares and securities {both quoted and unquoted}:

Market Value Book Value | Market Value / Book Value
/ Break up or (Net of Break up or {Net of
fair value or | Provisions) as |- fair value or Provisions) as
NAV* as at at Mar 31, NAV* as at at Mar 31,
Category Mar 31, 2016 2016 Mar 31, 2015 2015
1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries ) )
{b) Companies in the same group - -
(c) Other related parties B )
2. Other than related parties 2,503,065,085 | 2,411,756,861 | 13,553,419,164 | 13,539,177,074
2,503,065,085 | 2,411,756,861 | 13,553,419,164




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

* Disclosure is made in respect of available information

#% Ac par Accounting Standard of ICAl {Please see Note 3)

{7) Other information 2016 2015

Particulars Amount Amount
(i} 1 Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties - -
{b) Other than related parties - -
(i} | Net Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties - - )
(iti} | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Notes :

1. As defined in Paragraph 2(1){xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.

3. All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for calculation of
investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect
of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed
irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in (4) above.
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